

4.9.2 Allocation of Import Rights

The NYISO establishes the maximum amount of Unforced Capacity that can be provided to the NYCA by Resources located in each neighboring Control Area according to the procedures contained in Section 2.7 of this Manual. **On or about February 15 the NYISO shall post the final quantity of external Installed Capacity import rights (“Import Rights”) available for request for the following Capability Year. The quantity of Import Rights available prior to the Summer and the Winter Capability Period (Strip) Auctions shall be 100% of the Import Rights available, as posted by the NYISO.** Once this amount has been determined for each neighboring Control Area ~~posted~~, the allocation among NYISO ~~eustomers~~ **Customers** of Import Rights to External Unforced Capacity supply is ~~done~~ **is performed** according to the following procedures.

§ Grandfathered External Installed Capacity Import Rights

Details concerning ~~Grandfathered Rights~~ **grandfathered external Installed Capacity import rights (“Grandfathered External Installed Capacity Import Rights”)** (as **described in Section 5.12.2 of the Services Tariff**) are provided in Attachment E to this Manual.

§ Other Allocations

After accounting for Grandfathered External Installed Capacity ~~rights~~ **Import Rights**, the NYISO will allocate the remaining ~~rights for External~~ **Import Rights to Customers, to the extent they are requested, in the manner specified below.** The Unforced Capacity supply on a first come, first serve basis ~~imported using these~~ **Import Rights** may ultimately only be used by LSEs ~~located~~ **to satisfy their requirements** within the NYCA, but any NYISO Customer may submit a request ~~along with all required supporting documents seeking External Installed Capacity rights.~~ **seeking Import Rights along with all required supporting documents as detailed below. Customers may request only that megawatt quantity of Import Rights remaining to be allocated from each control area.**

Request

§ Effect of MW Limits on Allocations

Megawatt amount limits on Import Rights that can be allocated by the NYISO may affect the allocation process at different points in time. For Import Rights not yet allocated during a Capability Period, the NYISO may consider other, newly developing constraints when determining allocations for those remaining Import Rights.

§ Period for Initial Requests Made Prior to Capability Period

Initial requests for Import Rights for one or more months within a Capability Period may **must** be sent by facsimile to the NYISO (at the number listed below) during the following time period. A request sheet is available at: **(e-mail (using as an e-mail**

attachment a completed version of the request form posted at http://www.nyiso.com/public/webdocs/products/icap/auctions/Winter-2005-2006/forms/icap_import_rights_fax_form.pdf or participants may use their own request sheet. [Form will be reviewed, as necessary, for any changes necessitated by the pro rata approach] to the NYISO (ICAP_Info@nyiso.com) during the following time periods:

- Beginning at 8:00 AM ET
- For Summer Capability Period: After 8 AM ET and before 5:00 PM ET on the first business day (referred to herein as Day 1 of the four-day cycle applicable to Capability Period and monthly Import Rights allocations) following the publication of the total number of import rights Import Rights made available by the NYISO (on or about February 15)
- For Winter Capability Period: After 8 AM ET and before 5:00 PM ET on the first business day (referred to herein as “Day 1” following the publication of the total number of Import Rights made available by the NYISO (on or about August 30) not more than thirty (30) days prior to a Capability Period (strip) Auction, and the Winter Capability Period (Strip) Auction.

- Ending at 5:00 PM ET four (4) business days prior to a Capability Period Strip Auction.

On or about February 15 the NYISO shall post the final quantity of Import Rights available for request for the following Capability Year. The quantity of rights that will be available at that time prior to the Summer and the Winter Capability Period (strip) Auctions shall be 100 % of the Import Rights available, as posted by the NYISO.

§ Period for Initial Requests Made For Remaining Import Rights Following Strip or Monthly Auction

If Import Rights are not fully subscribed after allocated for the entire Capability Period (~~strip~~) after the Strip Auction has concluded, the NYISO will open another period of first come, first serve allocations prior to each Monthly Auction for the month or months in which Import Rights remain and the NYISO will post the any change to the amount remaining of available Import Rights after each Monthly Auction.

In circumstances where the NYISO offers such subsequent auction. For Import Right allocations, for each month within a Capability Period, Day-1 requests for Import Rights may be sent by facsimile to the NYISO (at the number listed below) must be sent by e-mail (using as an e-mail attachment a completed version of the request form posted at http://www.nyiso.com/public/webdocs/products/icap/auctions/Winter-2005-2006/forms/icap_import_rights_fax_form.pdf) to the NYISO (ICAP_Info@nyiso.com) during the following time period: periods:

- ~~Beginning at~~ **After 8:00 AM ET and before 5:00 PM ET** on the business day **(Day 1)** following the day the NYISO posts the results of each Capability Period (Strip) or Monthly Auction.
 - ~~Ending at 5:00 PM ET four (4) business days prior to the next Monthly Auction.~~

Determination of Start Time for Submission of Requests

~~As described above, submissions by facsimile of requests for Import Rights, whether prior to the start of a Capability Period or prior to the start of a Monthly Auction, may be made only after the occurrence of the start time of 8:00 AM ET.~~

~~This procedure will be implemented by programming of the NYISO's facsimile machine (the "FAX Machine") to begin receiving faxes only after the occurrence of 8:00 AM ET based on the synchronization of the clock in the FAX Machine with a Network Time Protocol (NTP) server that is, in turn, synchronized with the U.S. atomic clock. Accordingly, NYISO Customers may wish to synchronize their fax sending equipment with, or time the sending of their facsimiles based upon, the U.S. atomic clock. However, the clock in the FAX Machine will establish, for Import Rights allocation purposes, the occurrence of the start time of 8:00 AM ET. The FAX Machine will create a log of received faxes and place a date/time stamp on each request.~~

~~A clock displaying Eastern (EST/EDT) time in hours, minutes and seconds (HH:MM:SS) will be visible on the NYISO website. This clock will be synchronized with a NTP server that is, in turn, synchronized to the US atomic clock. This NYISO website clock display is *for the convenience of Customers only* and does not govern the start time for the Import Rights allocation process. Instead, as noted above, the FAX Machine establishes the start time of the Import Rights allocation process.~~

Contents of Request

~~Each request must contain the following information:~~

- ~~1. The identity of the NYISO Customer making the request;~~
- ~~2. The identity of the External Installed Capacity Supplier;~~
- ~~3. The name and location of the Resource;~~
- ~~4. The Control Area in which the Resource for which the Installed Capacity Supplier seeks rights is located;~~
- ~~5. The MW amount requested, equal to the Installed Capacity Equivalent of the Unforced Capacity sale to the NYCA from the Resource~~

designated in (4) above. For example, a request for 100 MW of Import Rights from a Resource with a 10% EFORd will support a UCAP sale of 90 MW;

6. ~~The time period, in blocks of whole months, for which the rights are requested;~~
7. ~~E-mail address of the requesting party to which a response will be made.~~

~~The information listed above must be provided as a “Request for External Installed Capacity Import Rights” to the ISO’s Manager of Auxiliary Market Operations via facsimile to the following NYISO FAX Machine number: 518-356-6208.~~

~~If the NYISO determines that the information provided in the request is incomplete or inadequate, the NYISO will immediately notify the requesting party. By 5:00 PM of the day on which requests are received, the NYISO will notify all requestors that have submitted a complete and adequate request for Import Rights of their priority.~~

Priority

~~Only complete requests submitted within the time periods specified above will be evaluated by the NYISO. A facsimile transmission that is shown on the FAX Machine log as incomplete will result in the treatment as incomplete of any requests included in any portion of the facsimile transmission that *is* received. The start time for these time periods will be established in the manner described in the “Determination of Start Time for Submission of Requests” section above. The time/date stamp provided by the FAX Machine (as described in that section) will determine the relative priority among the requests received following the start time; however, the maintenance of a Customer’s priority is contingent upon the NYISO’s receipt from the Customer of the supporting documents within the time period set forth in the “Supporting Documents” section below. If the complete and adequate supporting documents are not submitted within that time period, the corresponding request will be automatically rejected upon expiration of that time period.~~

§ Treatment of Multiple and Duplicate Requests

If multiple requests are to be submitted by a Customer in multiple separate facsimile transmissions ~~or e-mail submittals~~ within a single request period **(which can extend up to four days if prorating is required, as described below)**, with the intent that the ~~ISO~~**NYISO** evaluate each request **submitted** individually, the Customer must provide notice to the ~~ISO~~**NYISO** of that intent separately and in writing ~~(by via e-mail to: ICAP_Info@nyiso.com)~~ at least one ~~hour~~**day** prior to the start time for the **Day 1 of that request period— and must also supply the appropriate additional supporting documentation for each request.**

If a Customer's request (by separate ~~facsimile transmission~~ e-mail submittal) changes the content of a prior request e-mail submitted by that Customer ~~in an earlier facsimile transmission~~ within the same request period and without prior notice of intent to submit separate e-mail requests for individual evaluation, or if an identical request is submitted more than once in multiple ~~facsimile transmissions~~, the latest time stamp will determine its priority relative to other Customers' requests e-mail submittals, the final request received within that request period (as judged by the time stamp assigned by the NYISO e-mail server) from that Customer will be deemed to supersede all prior requests from that Customer for Import Rights, and the NYISO will presume any supporting documentation received is intended to support that latest request.

If duplicate requests are submitted in the same ~~facsimile transmission~~, they must be identified as duplicates ~~or~~ e-mail submittal, they will be treated by the NYISO as requests for a cumulative megawatt amount and the NYISO will presume any supporting documentation should support that cumulative megawatt amount.

Customers requesting Import Rights may, but are not initially required to, notify the NYISO in the e-mail submitting their requests that they will accept the obligation to supply either the requested megawatt amount or any prorated portion of that requested amount as modified by the NYISO in the evaluation process.

§ Supporting Documents

In addition to the request form and contents described above, the requester must submit supporting documentation, with pricing redacted, of the executed bilateral agreements for which Import Rights are requested, between either a qualified External Installed Capacity Supplier or a marketer contracted with a qualified External Installed Capacity Supplier and:

(a) a LSE within the NYCA; or

(b) a marketer that is not an affiliate of the External Installed Capacity Supplier.

The supporting documentation of bilateral agreements must be received by 5:00 PM ET (if sent by e-mail or fax, as determined by the time stamp of the NYISO e-mail or fax machine, respectively) of the business day in which the requests for Import Rights are submitted to the NYISO. This supporting documentation may be submitted via e-mail (ICAP_Info@nyiso.com) along with the request form. The submission of incomplete or inadequate information does not alter the time frame in which such documents are due. For example, a requester that has submitted incomplete or inadequate supporting documentation has until 5:00 PM ET of the business day in which the requests for Import Rights are submitted to the NYISO to provide adequate and complete supporting documentation.

§ Rejection of Requests

A submittal consists of a conforming request form and conforming supporting document(s) for that request form. Only conforming submittals by e-mail within

the time periods specified above will be evaluated by the NYISO. A submittal that is non-conforming, in that it is lacking required information, will result in the treatment as non-conforming of all requests included on that request form. If the NYISO determines that the information provided in the request is non-conforming, the NYISO will so notify the requesting party as soon as reasonably feasible on the day the submittal is received. If conforming information is not submitted by 5:00 P.M. ET on the same day as the request, the request will be rejected.

A request may also be rejected based on any of the following:

- The Installed Capacity to be imported is from unqualified External Installed Capacity Suppliers; or
- The megawatt amount provided in the supporting documentation is less than the megawatt amount included in the Import Rights request; or
- The megawatt amount requested exceeds the limit available to import from the corresponding control area.

If a request is rejected, the allocation of Import Rights proceeds as if that request had never been submitted.

§ Initial Processing/Modification of Valid Requests

Upon receipt of a valid request and supporting documentation for a bilateral transaction on Day 1 of the four-day request/allocation period, the NYISO will respond by 5:00 PM ET of the next business day (“Day 2”) following the day on which the initial requests for Import Rights are submitted to the NYISO.

During Day 2, the NYISO will review all conforming requests with conforming supporting documentation to determine whether it is necessary for the NYISO to modify requests by prorating allocations of Import Rights because of either or both of these conditions:

- a) Allocating all requests would cause the megawatt amount of Import Rights allocated from one or more external control areas to exceed the limit on the amount of Installed Capacity that can be imported from that control area or areas, or
- b) Allocating all requests would cause the total megawatt amount of Import Rights allocated to exceed the limit on the amount of Installed Capacity that can be imported from all external control areas combined into the NYCA;

If no prorating is necessary, the NYISO will notify each requesting party on Day 2 whether its request has been accepted or rejected, with reasons for rejection, if such be the case. If a request is accepted, the NYISO will provide a confirmation number.

If prorating is necessary, Customers who do not withdraw accepted requests within the Two Day Window detailed below acquire an obligation to supply the requested capacity amount to NYCA using resources located in that control area and using those Import Rights, either through bilateral transactions with a qualified LSE or

unaffiliated marketer, or through a \$0 offer in a New York Installed Capacity auction.

§ Prorating and Subsequent Withdrawals/Requests; Obligations

Where prorating is necessary, the procedure for determining the megawatt amount of Import Rights allocated to each customer making a request in these situations consists of two stages.

The first stage is a proration by the NYISO of requests in situations where the total megawatt amount of Import Rights requests for an individual external control area exceeds the megawatt limit on imports of capacity from that control areas. The prorated megawatt amount for each request would be determined by multiplying the number of megawatts of Import Rights from that control area contained in the request for a given month by the ratio of (1) the number of megawatts of Import Rights available for allocation from that external control area (after taking Grandfathered External Installed Capacity Import Rights and other previously accepted obligations into account) to (2) the number of megawatts of Import Rights from that external control area that have been requested for that month. Requests to import Installed Capacity from control areas for which requests for Import Rights are collectively less than or equal to the limit on the number of Import Rights that can be allocated from that control area would not be prorated in this stage.

In the second stage, the NYISO will reduce Import Rights allocations further, as necessary, to conform to limits on the aggregate megawatt amount of External Installed Capacity that can be imported from all external control areas into the NYCA. If, following the first stage, these limits would be exceeded by the grant of the requests following modifications in the first stage, the megawatt amount of Import Rights in each request from each control area for each month will be multiplied by the ratio of (1) the total number of megawatts of Import Rights that can be allocated (after taking grandfathered Import Rights and other previously accepted obligations into account), to (2) the number of megawatts of Import Rights that have been requested for that month, as prorated in the first stage.

If requests for Import Rights from any control area exceed the Import Rights the NYISO can allocate from that control area (after taking Grandfathered External Installed Capacity Import Rights into account) the NYISO will so notify the Customers by 5:00 PM ET on Day 2. In addition, customers will be notified of the available Import Rights for each month within a Capability Period.

During the two business day “window” following Day 2 (“Day 3” and “Day 4”, collectively the “Two-Day Window”) and ending at 5:00 P.M. ET on Day 4:

- Customers who had previously requested Import Rights and who did not previously indicate that they would accept the obligation to supply capacity may withdraw their requests by e-mail.
- Customers may submit additional requests for Import Rights from any control area, up to the limit of available Import Rights from each control area (as reduced

by previous requests for which an obligation has already been accepted by the requesters). Requirements for such requests (including the timely submission of supporting documentation) are the same as stated above.

· Customers requesting Import Rights may inform the NYISO by e-mail that they accept the obligation to import capacity using those Import Rights allocations, as described above, either at the time the request is submitted or before the close of Day 4.

The NYISO will notify Customers when Import Rights have been made available due to withdrawal of Import Rights requests.

At the conclusion of the Two-Day Window at 5:00 P.M. ET on Day 4, all Customers who have submitted valid requests (not withdrawn within the Two-Day Window) for Import Rights for the control area(s) for which the Two-Day Window was declared become obligated to supply the requested capacity amount (or pro-rated amount thereof, as applicable) to NYCA using those resources and located in that control area as designated in the request form and using those Import Rights, through bilateral transactions with a qualified LSE or unaffiliated marketer. Customers who requested Import Rights and who did not indicate they would accept the obligation to supply capacity but rather withdrew their requests prior to the close of the Two-Day Window will be under no further obligation associated with those Import Right requests.

If at any time, the NYISO has allocated all of the Import Rights that are available to permit the import of Installed Capacity from one or more control areas or NYCA as a whole for one or more months, the NYISO will promptly issue an announcement to all Customers alerting them to this fact.

§ Use of Import Rights

Customers who are allocated Import Rights under the process described above shall demonstrate to the NYISO via the certification process stated in the Services Tariff no later than the deadline for monthly certification, as provided by the applicable Capability Period event schedule on the Installed Capacity (ICAP) Product page of the NYISO web site (<http://www.nyiso.com/public/products/icap/index.jsp>), that they have used those Import Rights to support the import of Installed Capacity from the relevant Control Area into New York to meet the LSE Unforced Capacity Obligation of an LSE serving load in the NYCA.

If, by the close of that certification time, a holder of such Import Rights has neither sold that Installed Capacity using those Import Rights in an NYISO-administered auction nor has entered into a bilateral agreement to supply Installed Capacity to a New York LSE using those Import Rights, the associated Installed Capacity will be made available to the market for use in the Spot Market Auction as price taker, i.e., at a price of \$0/megawatt. The Supplier will be paid the market-clearing price for the control area in which that capacity is located.

§ External Installed Capacity Sales in NYISO Administered Auction

All purchasers of External Unforced Capacity in a NYISO-administered auction shall receive the Import Rights necessary to permit that Unforced Capacity to count towards the LSE Unforced Capacity Obligation. Therefore, in order to ensure that there are sufficient External Installed Capacity Import Rights available, the NYISO shall limit the number of megawatts of Unforced Capacity that can be purchased in any External Control Area in those auctions. In each Capability Period auction, the NYISO shall limit the number of megawatts of Unforced Capacity that can be purchased in any External Control Area to the number of megawatts of Unforced Capacity that can be provided by Installed Capacity Suppliers located in that Control Area, as determined in Section 2.7 of this Manual, less all Import Rights that have been requested for that External Control Area under the provisions of this section. In addition, the NYISO will permit entities that have been allocated Import Rights to offer Installed Capacity into the auctions it administers.

In the Capability Period Monthly Auctions held before and during the Capability Period, the NYISO shall limit the number of megawatts of Unforced Capacity that can be purchased in any External Control Area to the number of megawatts of Import Rights that the NYISO makes available for the Capability Period from that Control Area, less the number of megawatts of Unforced Capacity purchased in that External Control Area for that month in preceding Monthly Auctions and the Strip Auction, less all External Installed Capacity Rights that have been allocated to support external Bilateral Transactions for that month.

The NYISO will reduce Import Rights eligible to be allocated in the Capability Period strip auction based on the allocations made according to the above procedures.